

KENTUCKY GENERAL ASSEMBLY AMENDMENT FORM  
2015 REGULAR SESSION  
**Unofficial Document**

Amend printed copy of HB 196

On page 4, after line 3, insert the following:

"➔Section 2. KRS 227.450 is amended to read as follows:

As used in KRS 227.450 to 227.500 unless the context otherwise requires:

- (1) **"Alteration" means any change, modification, or adjustment to existing electrical system or conduit;**
- (2) **"Commissioner" means the commissioner of the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction;**
- (3) **"Division" means the Electrical Division within the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction;**
- (4) **"Electrical contractor" means any licensed individual, partnership, or corporation that is licensed to engage in, offers to engage in, or advertises or holds itself out to be qualified to engage in designing, planning, superintending, contracting of, or assuming responsibility for the installation, alteration, or repair of any electrical system~~wiring~~ used for the purpose of furnishing heat, light, or power, and employs electrical workers to engage in this practice. If the electrical contractor is not a master electrician, the electrical contractor shall employ at least one (1) full-time master electrician;**
- (5) **"Electrical system" means any electrical work subject to standards provided within the**

Amendment No. HFA 1

Sponsor: Sal Santoro

Committee Amendment: \_\_\_\_\_

Signed: \_\_\_\_\_

Floor Amendment: \_\_\_\_\_

LRC Drafter: Sanderson, Michel

Adopted: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Rejected: \_\_\_\_\_

Doc. ID: XXXXX

**Not for Filing**

**National Electrical Code as adopted in the Uniform State Building Code, as promulgated by the Board of Housing, Buildings and Construction;**

~~(6)~~~~(2)~~ "Electrician" means any person licensed by the department who is employed by an electrical contractor and is engaged in the construction, alteration, or repair of any electrical **system**~~[wiring]~~ used for the purpose of furnishing heat, light, or power;

~~(7)~~~~(3)~~ "Electrical" pertains to the installation, alteration, or repair of wires and conduits for the purpose of transmitting electricity, and the installation of fixtures and equipment in connection therewith;

~~(8)~~~~(4)~~ "Electrical inspector" means any person certified by the commissioner of housing, buildings and construction pursuant to KRS 227.489 who, for compensation, inspects the construction and installation of electrical conductors, fittings, devices, and fixtures for light, heat, or power service equipment to ascertain the compliance with the National Electrical Code incorporated in the Uniform State Building Code promulgated pursuant to KRS 198B.050 or the standards of safety of the Commonwealth of Kentucky;~~and~~

~~(9)~~~~(5)~~ "Department" means the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction; **and**

**(10) "Repair" means the reconstruction or renewal of any part of an existing building for the purpose of its maintenance.**

➔Section 3. KRS 227.480 is amended to read as follows:

(1) **(a)** A city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government **or the state** shall, according to the Uniform State Building Code as it pertains to the plan review and inspection responsibilities of local governments **or the state**, require any person to obtain **a permit**~~[permits]~~ before commencing construction, alteration, or repairs of any electrical **system**~~[wiring]~~.

**(b)** The city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government **or the state** shall require all inspections that are deemed necessary by the department for

the safety of life and property. The department shall promulgate administrative regulations to describe the circumstances where inspections are required.

- (2) A city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government or the state shall not issue a permit unless the applicant submits proof of being licensed as an electrical contractor under KRS Chapter 227A or of acting on behalf of a licensed electrical contractor. However, the provisions of this subsection shall not apply to a homeowner or farmer who does construction, alteration, or repairs of any electrical system~~[wiring]~~ on his or her own premises or any other person exempt from licensing under KRS 227A.030 or **KRS 227A.150**. This subsection shall not apply to electrical work performed by the Commonwealth of Kentucky, a city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government, or any subdivision thereof.
- (3) A city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government shall appoint and may fix the compensation of city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government electrical inspectors, and may by ordinance fix reasonable fees and establish other requirements for the conduct of electrical inspections within its boundaries. All electrical inspectors must be certified under KRS 227.489.
- (4) Reasonable standards for the construction, alteration, and repair of any electrical system~~[wiring]~~ shall be those adopted in the Uniform State Building Code, as promulgated by the Board of Housing, Buildings and Construction, and shall have as a minimum standard the requirements of the National **Electrical**~~[Electric]~~ Code. These standards shall be used by the electrical inspector in making his inspections.

➔Section 4. KRS 227.491 is amended to read as follows:

- (1) An electrical inspector who certifies an electrical installation shall furnish and attach an approval sticker, bearing his or her signature and certification number in a conspicuous place on the main service entrance equipment. He or she shall also provide the owner of the

electrical installation or his or her authorized agent with a certificate of approval if the same is requested. A complete record of each inspection shall be kept by the inspector and these records shall be made available to the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction upon its request.

- (2) ~~An~~**Not** electrical inspector shall:
- (a) **Not** attempt to supplant, overrule, or otherwise invalidate the judgment of another electrical inspector whose services for a particular building, structure, or other project have been solicited by an owner, contractor, municipality, or other person without first obtaining express written consent from the designated inspector's office supervising the original inspector;
  - (b) **Not** certify unlicensed or unlawful electrical installations;
  - (c) **Not** certify or inspect an electrical installation in a manufactured home or mobile home where the certified installer seal is not present pursuant to KRS 227.570;~~or~~
  - (d) **Not** certify or inspect an electrical installation in a previously owned manufactured home or a previously owned mobile home when a Class B1 seal is not present as required by KRS 227.605; **and**
  - (e) **Verify required electrical licensure on projects within the inspector's jurisdiction. The electrical inspector shall report all electrical licensure violations to the department within ten (10) days of discovery.**
- (3) Failure of an electrical inspector to **comply with any provision of this chapter or the administrative regulations promulgated thereunder**~~observe subsection (2) of this section~~ shall subject that inspector to review by the commissioner of housing, buildings and construction with possible suspension of certification for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of the commissioner's ruling.

➔Section 5. KRS 227.530 is amended to read as follows:

- (1) There is hereby created an Electrical Advisory Committee which shall be attached to the Electrical Division within the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction for administrative purposes. The committee shall be constituted as follows:
  - (a) Two (2) members chosen from public utility companies;
  - (b) Two (2) members who are electricians;
  - (c) Two (2) members who are certified electrical inspectors, one (1) of whom shall be employed by a governmental entity and the other who shall be an **electrical inspector contracted to conduct inspections of**~~independent contractor engaged in the business of inspecting~~ electrical installations;
  - (d) Two (2) members who are licensed professional electrical engineers;
  - (e) Two (2) members who are engaged in the business of electrical contracting;~~and~~
  - (f) One (1) member who is engaged in the business of electrical contracting and who employs no more than five (5) full-time employees when appointed; **and**
  - (g) **The commissioner of the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction or his or her designee.**
- (2) **Appointed** committee members shall be appointed by the Governor for four (4) year terms. No committee member shall be appointed for more than one (1) successive term.
- (3) The committee shall meet at least quarterly or upon request of the department for the purpose of considering matters relating to electrical installations and electrical inspections. The committee shall have the opportunity to review and comment on relevant administrative regulations that are subject to the requirements of KRS 198B.030(8) and (9) and 198B.040(11) and shall make recommendations to and otherwise advise the department on these matters.
- (4) All committee members shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the conduct of Commonwealth business.

➔Section 6. KRS 227A.010 is amended to read as follows:

As used in KRS 227A.010 to 227A.140, unless the context otherwise requires:

- (1) "Authorized local licensing program" means any city, county, urban-county, charter county, or consolidated local government electrician and electrical contractor licensing program established by local ordinance for the purpose of licensing electrical workers. "Authorized local licensing program" shall include a licensing program established through a cooperative agreement between two (2) or more counties;
- (2) "Committee" means the Electrical Advisory Committee as described in KRS 227.530;
- (3) "Department" means the Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction;
- (4) "Electrical" pertains to the installation, alteration, or repair of wires and conduits for the purpose of transmitting electricity, and the installation of fixtures and equipment in connection therewith;
- (5) "Electrical contractor" means any licensed individual, partnership, or corporation that is licensed to engage in, offers to engage in, or advertises or holds itself out to be qualified to engage in designing, planning, superintending, contracting of, or assuming responsibility for the installation, alteration, or repair of any electrical system~~wiring~~ used for the purpose of furnishing heat, light, or power, and employs electrical workers to engage in this practice. If the electrical contractor is not a master electrician, the electrical contractor shall employ at least one (1) full-time master electrician; however, no master electrician shall act in this capacity for more than one (1) electrical contractor;
- (6) "Electrical system" means any electrical work subject to standards provided within the National Electrical Code as adopted in the Uniform State Building Code, as promulgated by the Board of Housing, Buildings and Construction;**
- ~~(Z)(6)~~ "Electrician" means any person licensed by the department who is employed by an electrical contractor and is engaged in the construction, alteration, or repair of any electrical

system~~[wiring]~~ used for the purpose of furnishing heat, light, or power;

~~(8)~~~~(7)~~ "Maintenance worker or maintenance engineer" means a person who is a regular, bona fide employee or agent of a property owner, property lessor, property management company, or firm that is not in the electrical business but has jurisdiction over the property where the routine maintenance of electrical systems is being performed;

~~(9)~~~~(8)~~ "Master electrician" means any individual licensed to engage in, and assume responsible charge, supervision, or direction of an electrician engaged in the construction, installation, alteration, or repair of any electrical system~~[wiring]~~ used to furnish heat, light, or power;

~~(10)~~ **"Repair" means the reconstruction or renewal of any part of an existing building for the purpose of its maintenance;** and

~~(11)~~~~(9)~~ "Routine maintenance of electrical systems" means the routine and periodic servicing of electrical systems, including cleaning, inspecting, and making adjustments to ensure the proper operation and the removal or replacement of component parts. "Routine maintenance of electrical systems" does not include the installation of complete electrical systems."